NOMINATION OF HISTORIC BUILDING, STRUCTURE, SITE, OR OBJECT
PHILADELPHIA REGISTER OF MISTORIC PLACES
PHILADELPHIA HISTORICAL COMMISSION

SUBMIT ALL ATTACHED MATERIALS ON PAPER AND IN ELECTRONIC FORM {CD, EMAIL, FLASH DRIVE)
ELECTRONIC FILES MUST BE WORD OR WORD COMPATIBLE

1. ADDRESS OF HISTORIC RESOURGE (must comply with an Office of Property Assessment address)
Street address: 808 South Hutchinson Street

Postal code: 19147

2. NAME OF HISTORIC RESQURCE

Historic Nams: St. Paul's R.C. Church's Rectory/Pastoral Residence

Currant/Common Name: as_above

3. TYPE OF HISTORIC RESOURCE
% Building ] Structure [ site (] Cuject

4. PROPERTY INFORMATION

Condition:  [X excellent [7] good [ fair [ poor ] ruins
Occupancy: occupied [] vacant [J under construction ] unknown
Current use: residence for Roman Catholic clergy

5. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Pieass attach a narrative description and site/plot plan of the resource’s boundaries.

6. DESCRIPTION

Please attach a narrative description and photographs of the resource’s physical appearange, site, setling,
and surroundings.

7. SIGNIFICANCE

Please attach a narrative Statement of Significance citing the Criteria for Designation the resource satisfies.
Period of Significance (from year to year): from 1860 4o 1890

Date(s) of construction and/or alteration: 1879

Architect, engineer, and/or designer: unknown
Builder, coniractor, and/or artisan: "

Original owner: Archdiocese of Philadelphia

Other significant persons: Vicar General Maurice A. Walsh




CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATION:

The historic resource satisfies the following criteria for designation (check all that apply):

rad (a) Has significant character, interest or value as part of the development, heritage or cultural
' characteristics of the City, Commonwealth or Nation or is associated with the life of a person
significant in the past; or, T ~
(b) Is associated with an event of importance to the history of the City, Commonwealth or Nation;
or,

(c) Reflects the environment in an era characterized by a distinctive architectural style; or,

(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style or engineering specimen; or,
(e) Is the work of a designer, architect, landscape architect or designer, or engineer whose work
has significantly influenced the historical, architectural, economic, sogcial, or cultural development of
the City, Commonwealth or Nation; or,

(f) Contains elements of design, detail, materials or craftsmanship which represent a significant
innovation; or,

(g) Is part of or related to a square, park or other distinctive area which should be preserved
according to an historic, cultural or architectural motif; or,

{(h) Owing to its unique location or singular physical characteristic, represents an established and
familiar visual feature of the neighborhood, community or City; or,

(i) Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in pre-history or history; or

(j) Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historical heritage of the community.
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8. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES
Please attach '

9. NOMINATOR

Organization Date

Name with Title_ Celeste A. Morello, MS, MA Email

Street Address 1234 South Sheridan Street Telephone_ 215.334.6008

City, State, and Postal Code Philadelphia, PA 19147-4820

Nominator [_] is is not the property owner.

PHC UsSE ONLY
Date of Receipt:_ [{, M Ay 201\8
[X Correct-Complete [ ] Incorrect-incomplete Date: 8 August 2019

Date of Notice Issuance: 15 August 2019

Property Owner at Time of Notice
Name: Rev. Dennis J. Dougherty

Address: 1723 Race Street

City:_ Philadelphia State: PA_ . Postal Code:_19103
Date(s) Reviewed by the Committee on Historic Designation:_ 18 September 2019

Date(s) Reviewed by the Historical Commission:; 11 October 2019
Date of Final Action;__11 October 2019

[X Designated [ ] Rejected 3/12/18
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26. brief description {note unusua! features, integrity, environment, threats and associated buildings} E‘g‘ E
u -
The church, in Gothic style, follows traditional church o8
design lines, with the nave and aisles reflected by main and flanking portals. The g =
tympanum of the severely pointed entrance is infilled with a heavily traced stained w g
glass. Above the main entrance, 'a niche houses a statue of St. Paul, the patron of rt ‘§
- - =

the church. Wide pilasters with cfeeelated tops subdivide the main facade and the
side walls. St. Paul's was altered i 1905 by E.F. Durang.

{continug on back if r\_ecessarv}

27. histery, significance and/or background
St. Paul's congregation centers around the.Italian Market area in the largely Catholic

area. Several years before the church was built, Durang designed the large school
across the street, which probably alsc served as the church until funds could be
raised to built a new structure. The Cbumh appears to have been built in the/_’t!)_860 8,
possibhly by John McArthur.

{continue on back if necessary}

ourceslon&-:formaxtf60.763l; 0916485 29. prepared by:
C. Doebley

30. date revision(s}

{continue on back if necessary} 8/26 /80
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BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION:

By reference to the Pennsylvania Historic Resource Survey
Form, the nominated St. Paul's Rectory property was included
with St. Paul's Roman Catholic Church's plot. (Refer to next
page.) Previous research (for the 1992 history of St. Paul's)
cited the handwritten "Deeds" where in 1843 "Patrick Francis
Sheridan" (St. Paul's first pastor, a priest), enterred into a
"ground rent"' granted by Joseph Harris to John S. Davis,"then
to Sheridan the ground between "Stewart Street'" (now, Delhi)
and "Lebanon Street" (Hutchinson) on the north side of Christian.
Two lots, each measuring 16' along Hutchinson Street} opposite
a shallow alley dividing the church-owned ground from the row of
six(6) houses on Catharine Street are the combined gite of the
nomination. Thus, the Rectory has a 32' wide east side and has
a depth at one-half of the row of houses (each at 16' wide) on
Catharine Street, or 48'. Unoccupied/undeveloped ground in the
western part of the Rectory's lot has been yard space. (Also

see aerial view for dimensions below.)

23. sita plyn with north arrow

T OCATHARINE T T

' | rowhouses
) R . % . ‘_Pi’//
AV I 7 i W alley
YR & |
. é _ i g \?ﬁfﬁ‘nominated Rectory
. ' ;ﬁ;ﬁj L R adjoined to Church
N e w;_; St. Paul's
/4;/:/ |

CHRIGTLAN . &T .

1Morello, C.A., Beyond History: The Times and Peoples of St. Paul's
Roman Catholic Church, 1843 to 1993. Phila.: Jefferies & Manz, 1992,
City Archives has the bound "Deeds'"; Cornerstone laid at church,
reported in "The Catholic Herald," October 12, 1843.



4 (staff supplemented)

5. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Situate on the West side of S. Hutchinson Street at the distance of approximately 59 feet Southward
from the South side of Catharine Street. Containing in front or breadth on said S. Hutchinson Street
approximately 32 feet and extending in depth Westward between lines at right angles with the said S.
Hutchinson Street approximately 88 feet. Being the parcel boundary for No. 808 S. Hutchinson Street.
Please note that it appears that a Southern portion of the building itself extends onto the parcel at 923
Christian Street, being Saint Paul’s Roman Catholic Church, a resource which was listed on the

Philadelphia Register of Historic Places on November 30, 1971.



South to north view of Bella
Vista neighborhood in South
Philadelphia where nomination
is located behind and adjoining

St. Paul's Roman Catholic Church
at 923 Christian Street.

St. Paul's Rectory (1879)

o

Imagery ©2019 ' opgle, MEp d_ata ©2019 Google 50 ft o ocu .

1 St. Paul's Rectory

St. Paul's Church

Christian Street



Description:

Completed in 1879, St. Paul’s Rectory was planned as the “pastoral residence” (or rectory)
and remains one today for the clergy ministering at the parish and their guests.?? The red
brick building is three stories in height and measures approximately 40 feet by 80 feet with an
east-west orientation upon a marble base which is approximately 30 inches in height. The east
(primary) facade is the most remarkable part of the building, which is adjoined to St. Paul’s
church’s north (side) wall. The Rectory’s north wall is obscured by the narrow alley that
separates it from the row of six houses on the 900 block of Catharine Street. The Rectory’s
west (rear) facade faces a large yard and the property extends to Delhi Street at the rear.

There is a one-story non-contributing modern addition connected to the rear of the Rectory.

The Rectory’s fagade has contemporary elements, lending some affinity to the Second Empire
style with the mansard roof with intact slate, dormers projecting from the roof, a centered
rounded-arch portal between and below symmetrically-place windows, each with stone sills
and surrounds that cap the lintels, with higher-set keystones. The doorway is approximately
one-foot deep with a modern door hung between modern glass block that fills spaces
originally intended for a wider door. The surround has a cross in the center. A semi-circular
transom is over this doorway. (See photographs). Iron grates cover the basement windows
where incised motifs decorate over the lintels. The building appears to be well-maintained,

with original brickwork and preserved elements remaining.

2 “The Catholic Standard,” November 24, 1888.
3 The Archdiocese of Philadelphia merged St. Mary Magdalen de Pazzi Roman Catholic Church (fd. 1852) with
St. Paul’s in 2000, with all clergy for both parishes residing at this Rectory.



View is from looking north on
Hutchinson Street showing the
projecting second floor window
and how the Rectory is attached
to the church building at the
church's north wall. Note the
rather shallow basement level.
The mansard roof is evident at

this vantage.

The northeast part of the Rec-
tory, or right side of the
facade shows the curving slope
of the mansard roof, dormer and
stone surrounds '"capping" the
windows. The brass lantern is

modern, as are the windows.

The brick is original and in-
tact from the 1879 construction.

Other photographs of details on
the Rectory's facade are in
the discussion regarding the

Second Empire Style.(pp. 22
and 23 )
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Staff Supplemented Photographs
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Primary fagade from S. Hutchinson Street, July 2019.



Staff Supplemented Photographs
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Staff Supplemented Photographs
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Rear fagade, and view of one-story rear addition. View from S. Delhi Street, July 2019.




Staff Supplemented Photographs

Entrance door, \}iew from S. Hutchinson Street, July 2019.



Staff Supplemented Photographs

Basement window, July 2019.
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STATEMENT of SIGNIFICANCE:

When St. Paul's Rectory (or "pastoral residence") was com~-
pleted in 1879, the archdiocesan newspaper, '""The Catholic Stan-
dard" described it as ""the finest in the city.”4'Although no other
details followed, the building was designed in the contemporary
Second Empire Style, a rarity for a South Philadelphia neighbor-
hood. Standing across from rows of Trinity houses from an earlier
time, and attached to the Gothic St. Paul's Roman Catholic church,
the nominated Rectory offers proof of the variations of architec-
tural styles during the 19th century, especially in urban areas.
Here, the mansard roof, broad and balanced brick facade with de-
corative surrounds capping’ the windows and welcoming rounded arch
portal greet those seeking the Roman Catholic clergy. Although
most architectural historians might consider the Second Empire
to have been on its way to unpopularity by 1879; some may compare
the style's continuing use in the resort towns where the mansard
roof and rounded arched windows and doors, with some decorative
details, was favored.

When ready for occupancy in 1879, this Rectory became the
residence for the new pastor, who also was the Vicar General of
the Archdiocese, Maurice A. Walsh (1832-1888). He had been the
administrative assistant to Archbishop James F. Wood, a Rector at
St. Charles Borromeo Seminary and pastor at St. Michael's in Ken-
sington. After Wood died in 1883, and until Archbishop Patrick
Ryan became the consecrated prelate in August of 1884, Walsh had
managed all archdiocesan matters and responsibilities. Walsh had
been a de facto head of the entire Archdiocese (city and four coun-
ties), overseeing parish foundings and development, parochial

schools, religious orders, hospitals, orphanages and other asylums.

‘November 24, 1888 edition.

Brown, Milton, American Art. NY: Abrams, 1979, p. 251.
"The Catholic Standard," November 24, 1888; "Times," November 22,
1888; November 23, 1888; '"Public Ledger,'" November 23, 1888.



Walsh retained his title of "Vicar General" of the Arch-
diocese (which no one else held) when Archbishop Ryan became the
new prelate of the see. Walsh also stayed at St. Paul's Rectory
as the pastor of "10,000 souls," %ne of the largest parishes.
However, while as pastor of St. Paul's and wearing "hats" of so
many positions of responsibility, perhaps the most honored title
was when Walsh was selected as "Judex" (judge) of the Court which
was preparing for the canonization of Bishop John N. Neumann, C.Ss.
R;EgNeumann would eventually become the first male saint in the
United States.

Walsh's stature in the Archdiocese qualified him for burial
among the Archdiocese's cardinals, archbishops and bishops in the
crypt of the Cathedral Basilica of Saints Peter and Paul (although
he was never raised above his primary level.)

Walsh's most significant work was done while residing at St.
Paul's Rectory from 1879 to his death there in 1888.

For its Second Fmpire design and Father Walsh's achievements
while as pastor and Vicar General at St. Paul's, the Rectory merits

historical certification under criteria (a) and (d).

The most frequently used
image of V.G. Walsh.

7” :
The Times," November 23, 1888,
"The Catholic Standard," September 25, 1886,
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St. Paul's Rectory...

~-11-

(a) Has significant character, interest or value as part of the -
development, herita~~ or cultural characteristics of the City...

DBEATH OF VECAR-GENEHAL WALSH.

R

The readers of the CATHOLIC StAND-
ARD have heavd, as we have, with great
sorvow and regrel, of the death of
Very Rev. MAURICE A, WaLsz, LL.D,
Vicar-Greneral of the Archdiocese of
Philadelphia. He was cub off by the
hand of death before old age had come '
upon him, and in the midst of his use-
fulness, The early years of his life were
spent in missions which entailed upon -
him severe and arduous fahor, and where !
he never spared himself, In the face of
great difficulties he built churches at
Tamaqua and Tuscarora.

Subsequently he discharged for several
years the duties of Rector of (he Theo-
logical Beminary of this diccese, and
subsequently to that he was the Pastor
of two very important parishes in this

the Vicars-General of this diocesze, and
on two gceasions was Administrator of
the See. The fact that he occupied
all these high and responsible positions
and for so many years is, in itself, con-
vineing proof that in the estimation of
the Most Reverend Ecelesiastical Supe-
riors of the diocese he possessed talents
and qualifications needed for the efficient
discharge of the duties of those offices.
According to the testimony of those
who once were his curates and now are
' Pastors of churches, and who are most
comptetent to correctly estimate his tal-
ent and qualifications, he possessed the
gift of order in & very high degree,
Owing to this he was able to accomplish
quietly, without seemingly taxing his
strength, much more than others lack-
ing that important talent could accom-
plish with great and violent efforts, His
house and household and the affairs of
the parishes over whicn he was FPastor,
were conducted with admirable system,

larity himself, and he impressed these

work upon those who were under him
and around him,

He was prudent in a high degree, and
possessed of great fact, preferring to ac-
complish by quiet influence what others

by urgent demonstrative efforts.
Mey he rest in peace,

1 city, and was also for many years one of §

He was a model of punctuality and regu- | .

requisites of good order and effective:

migh{ less successfully endeavor to effect ||

[+

or is associated with the life of a person
significant in the past.

The nominated property's origins in 1879 co-
incide with the appointment of the then-Dio-
cese of Philadelphia's Vicar General, Maurice

A. Walsh to also be the new pastor of St. Paul's
Roman Catholic Church after the death of the
first pastor, Patrick F. Sheridan (18137-1879).

Walsh had been an administrator of the diocese,
rising to be a de facto "bishop'" or head of

the Philadelphia see between the 1883 death

of Archbishop James F. Wood and the appointment
of Archbishop Patrick J. Ryan in August, 1884.
The title, "Vicar General" meant that Walsh

was the "administrative deputy of the bishop,”
handling matters as an aide, chief of staff

and secretary, if not more responsibilities.

In the interregnum period when the diocese had
no bishop, Walsh held one of the most powerful
positions in the (secular) history of the city
as the number of Roman Catholics increased with
descen-
the 1840s

Walsh oversaw the

immigration and subsequent generations
ded from those who came to the city in
and 1850s from Ireland.
founding of more parishes and used his past
experiences in organizing religious orders.

For example, while he was pastor of St. Michael's
in Kensington}ihalsh arranged for the first re=-
sidence for the Christian Brothers and their
college, (de) La Salle, now the University.

Architect Edwin F. Durang was also busy design-

9 WThe Catholic Standard," op.cit.
10nThe Times," November 22, 1888.

From Walsh's death on_NovembTr 22, 1888, the
ajor_mnews i i
buzfal"on RobenbeE 55, *fgg§ Lty reports until his
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ing or culminating work on religious buildings such as Visita-
tion, Blessed Virgin Mary Church (begun in 1875, dedicated, 1883)
and St. Agnes Hospital in South Philadelphial%or the Franciscan
sisters, the founders of the Franciscan Health network of hospi-
tals. The Archdiocesan Archives' sources on Walsh are gravely
inadequate on his life here--which years were spent more as the
overseer of archdiocesan matters, than as a priest ministering.
However, Walsh's importance was based on his accomplishments that
allowed him to earn a rarely used title, "Vicar General."

Maurice A. Walsh was born on January 30, 1832 "in the vicin-
ity of Dungarvan, County of Waterford, Ireland." Other members
of his family became clergymen and migrated to the United States.
"The Catholic Standard's'" biographical information on Walsh dated
his arrival to Philadelphia to "May, 1851" as a seminarian who
finished his studies at St. Charles Borromeo Seminary and was then
ordained by Saint Bishop John N. Neumann, C.Ss.R. in 1855. After
his stations in Pennsylvania's anthracite counties outside of the
city, Walsh was, on October 1, 1864,"appointed Pastor of St. Mi-
chael's, then the most important parish in the city." ~~St. Mi-
chael's prestige came after rising from the 1844 Nativist Riots
and succeeding in a lawsuit against the city from which damages
were paid (in part) to rebuild the Kensington church. 1In 1864,
during the Civil War, St. Michael's grew, possibly affected by
the mills surrounding the church that made textile and other
products for use by the Union forces. In local Roman Catholic
history, Walsh arranged for the Christian Brothers to come to St.
Michael's. The Order, founded by St. Jean Baptiste De La Salle
(1651-1719) was "a society of teachers devoted to the education

of boys." This was an experience familiar to Walsh when he was

11"The Catholic Standard,” September 15, 1883; Tatman & Moss' Bio-
19 graphical Dictionary of Philadeiphia Architects. Boston:1985,p230.
13 "The Catholic Standard," November 24, 1888.

Christian Brothers Archives, LaSalle University, Philadelphia.
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rector of St. Charles Borromec Seminary from 1861 to 1864. It

was the time when Walsh came to the attention of Archbishop James
Frederick Wood, the successor of St. John Neumann}4 Walsh, as the
seminary's rector no doubt encountered the dilemma caused by the
passing of the First Conscription Act to draft eligible males into
military service. The seminarians, like other priests, were likely
to be subjected to service, if they could not pay the $300.00 exem-
ption fee. What Walsh did to handle this was not recorded. But,
his transfer to St. Michael's during the war years (1864) seemed to
indicate the needs to improve the parish. The pastoral residence
at St. Michael's, academy and convent there underwent repairs.

Walsh also oversaw construction of the new school.

Walsh was sent to St. Paul's parish upon the death of the foun-
ding pastor, Patrick F. Sheridan who died in July of 1879. "The
Times'" on November 23, 1888 reported that the parish consisted of
"about 10,000 souls," a daunting number for a pastor. Walsh still
held his position of "Vicar General" which Archbishop Wood had con-
ferred upon him in 1868; he performed two tedious, stressful roles

while held in the esteem of his peers.

"The Catholic Standard's" "account" of Walsh's "career" (as
the headline ran), made a particular reference to the nominated
property:

"The most apparent of these (improvements at St. Paul's)

is the new pastoral residence, the finest in the city..."

The residence had already been in constructionyj sc when Walsh
came to St. Paul's, he had stayed at 704 Christian Street until

the residence was ready for occupancy§6

The Times," November 23, 1888,

1g 'Standard,"” November 24, 1888.

Ibid.
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The Announcement records held at St. Paul's Rectory recorded
the only information on the new pastoral residence which had the
old street name used: '808 Lebanon Street.'" (The early 19th cen-
tury Lebanon Gardens explained the strips of small streets here
between 9th and 10th Streets, from about Fitzwater to Christian
Streets.) The Announcement memorialized the "open house" at the
new rectory for the priests, furnished and decorated by the ladies
of the parish. The "open house" was held '"by Christmas of 1879,”17
a festive period as well as a religious one where the spirit of
the Birth of Jesus influenced the generosity of the 10,000 souls™
towards the new pastor of whom they were proud to say was "Vicar

General" of the entire Archdiocese.

Walsh's letters and name arises in countless documents for
each parish from about 1868 until his death in 1888. One of the
lesser known facts about Walsh that is of international significance
was his role as "Judex Deputatus" of the "Court appointed to inves-
tigate the cause looking to the beatification of the fourth Bishop
of Philadelphia,"John N. Neumann.8 The beatification process be-
gins with a miracle and "declaration by the pope that a deceased
person lived a holy 1ife and is now in heaven and is worthy of

public veneration..."1?

Beatification comes after the Congregation
for the Causes of Saints in Rome intensely investigates the person
who then is called "Blessed" by the Church. Neumann ordained Walsh
and Walsh was under Neumann from 1855 until the saint's death in
1860. In 1886, when Walsh served as the judge for this Court, he
sent all writtenm notes to the Congregation in Rome. This position,

and that of Vicar General put Walsh's name before the pope.

17Morello, op.cit., pp.83;87 n39.

18 The catholic Standard," September 25, 1886.

19The Redemptorist Pastoral publication, The Essential Catholic Hand-

book. Liguori: Liguori Press, 1997, p. 143 on "beatification."
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For the last five weeks of Walsh's life, he laid afflicted
with "Bright's disease of the kidneys and blood poisoning," as
reported first in "The Times'"late edition on November 22, 1888.
"The Public Ledger'" subsequently reported on the requiem Mass by
Archbishop Patrick Ryan and Walsh's burial in the crypt at the
Cathedral Basilica of Saints Peter and Paul on November 27, 1888.
The majority of priests in the same rank of Walsh do not receive
the same honors of burial. The first Masses over his remains were
at St. Paul's; then a succession of Masses on November 25, 1888
(a Sunday) were said for Walsh. On Tuesday, the 27th, more Masses
were sald at the Cathedral, by the archbishop, then again at St.
Paul's, as almost daily reporting on his passing was pcinted in
the city's secular press.

There is no question that Vicar General Maurice A. Walsh
figures in the history of the Archdiocese of Philadelphia. He is
"associated" with the nominated property as the first pastor to
reside there, and pass there in a building admired for its design
as 'the finest in the city." Not every Roman Catholic priest is
honored at death with the articulo mortis, an Apostolic Blessing,

but Maurice Walsh was, by Pope Leo XIII and this act, and his part
in the canonization process of the first male saint in the United
States, John N. Neumann, C.Ss.R. put Walsh where no other priest
in this Archdiocese was, or since has been,.

Photocopy of '"Standard" item

"Bmmm‘um;;;+;r1 . im; of September 25, 1886 which
E I NN. T
to investigate the caunse looekinoguin at{)lgobzati- named Walsh as the "Judex"
fication of the fourth Bishop of Philadelphia, (Judge) of the Court assembled
) ;ecat:r:ed s sesslons on the Srst Monday of to have Bishop John N. Neumann
ptemver, and will continue them every b i fied ith th : :
Moxday, and oftener if necessary, unttl the eatifie 1y Wl th the intentlom
investigation be completed. of canonization later.
This Courtis conatituted as follows : Judex . . .
Deputatus, Very Rev. Maurice A. Walsh, Source: Catholic Historical
LL.b.,V.G. i_dudices, Yery Rev, Nichelas 1
Cuntwell, V.., aad Rev. Patrick R, O Research Center, Phila.

Rellly; Postulator Apostolicus, Rev. Joseph
A, W‘!;rth C.85.R. ; Procarator i?‘iscaiis, Vel;y
Rev, P. A. Stauton, D.D., 0. S.4. 1 Seerets.
rius, Very Rev. John E. itzmaurice ; Cur-
sor, Rev, N. Firle, C.5%.R,

p—
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St. Paul's Rectory...

(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural
style--the Second Empire.

St. Paul's Rectory carries the distinguishing characteris-
tics of the Second Empire Style which are described as:

"Classical-oriented, mansard-roofed, rounded-arched, sym-

metrical, ordered, and at least in its origins, essentially

. 20
monochromatic.™

The Rectory's most obvious architectural detail is its
mansard roof which has black tiles in a pattern consistent to
the contemporary construction. (Refer to photographs. )

The mansard roof appeared in France after King Henry IV
"determined...to make practical and aesthetic improvements in
the city of Paris" in the early 1600s. Architect Salomon de
Brosse (1571-1626) was '"the most notable" and applied a sloping
roof to some palaces which would influence Francois Mansart
(1598-1666). Mansart's plan on the practicality of his high roof
and the space afforded within would be better understood later in
the work of his grand-nephew, Jules Hardoin-Mansart (1646—1708)%1
Brown and other architectural historians noted the "revival" of
17th century French architecture in 19th century American when
James Renwick designed the Corcoran Gallery (now, "Renwick Gallery™)
in 1859. Brown characterized it as "Second Empire" and the man-
sard roof, classical elements (rounded-arch windows, columns and
pediments) along with the symmetry are typical to the style.

These characteristics are also at St. Paul's Rectory.

OBrown, op.cit., p. 249. (See page in Appendix II.)
21Held, Julius, 17th and 18th Century Art. NY: Abrams, 1979, PP.127-

22130;132,
Brown, op.cit., p. 2530.



-~17=

Designed to be a "pastoral residence'" or "rectory," the
nominated St. Paul's Rectory holds less decorative elements
than one of the earliest Second Empire designs in the United
States, the "Renwick Gallery." (below, from Brown, page 250.)
Architect James Renwick used red brick, the mansard roof, roun-
ded arches and produced a symmetrically-balanced facade. These

are also present at St. Paul's Rectory. (See next page. )

278 James Renwick. The Renwick Gallery (formerly
Corcoran Gallery), Washington, D.C. 1859
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A SECOND EMPIRE ATTACHED TO A GOTHIC

The Google Map image (below) of St. Paul's Rectory's
facade (i.e., the east wall), shows where the building is ad-
joined to the north wall of the Gothic St. Paul's Roman Catho-

lic Church. Second Empire characteristics are noted.

Gothic arches (church) mansard roof

rounded arch

symmetry in
window placements

Woodcut published in the
May 13, 1893 '"Catholic
Standard" has the Rectory
design the same as the

pPresent,
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m PHILADELPHIA'S MOST WELL-KNOWN SECOND EMPIRE
. _

Webster gave City Hall three(3) styles:

1) "High Victorian Picturesque Ecle-
ticism" (p. 105);

}2) "French Renaissance" (p.105), and

?

"Second Empire" (p.140)

Example of the
mansard roof

—rounded arches

symmetrical forms
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THE SECOND EMPIRE STYLE in PHILADELPHIA:

The 19th century in the United States history of archi-
tecture is one of "revivals," new interpretations of older
styles and where modern architecture is rooted among those in
the profession of designing buildings. Philadelphia has always
been the place for experimenting with not only architecture, but
n engineering coordinating styles for an industrial workplace.
For residences, i.e., non-public buildings, the architect could
exercise more decorative or contemporary styles that had been
commissioned by wealthier individuals who could retain architects.

The question of who designed St. Paul's Rectory in 1879 in
the Second Empire style had been responded with attribution to
John McArthur, Jr. who was familiar with the church and neighbor-
hood. McArthur had re-configured the old Moyamensing Hall, across
from St. Paul's church on the south side of Christian Street into
a 220 bed hospital, the first Army Hospital during the Civil War.
McArthur also had done work at the church after a fire.23This
architect was known for his extensive use of the mansard roof at
City Hall (1871-81), but neither the Archdiocesan records nor
newspaper sources have reported on who drew the serene design
of the Rectory.

Webster reported wide use of the mansard roof in residential
buildings west of Broad Street, from Rittenhouse Square, south to
Christian Street. This was an area of new construction during
and after the Civil War (1861-65), where mansard roofs on row-
houses ranging from the simple standard in brick to more costly
and larger in brownstone are common to the neighborhood. The
timing of these building projects is later than when St. Paul's
parish was founded for an existing group of Roman Catholics re-

siding in what was called, Moyamensing Township before 1854.

23'Refer to Survey form; Tatman & Moss, Biographical Dictionary of
Philadelphia Architects, p. 512 and Wodehouse article in JSAH.
24

Webster, R., Philadelphia Preserved. Temple U. Press, 1981, pp.
112-113.



25

-21-

The Philadelphia Historical Commission's records on desig-
nated properties in Bella Vista (where the nomination is located),
which date prior to the founding of St. Paul's Roman Catholic
Church in 1843 included rowhouses on the 700 block of South 9th
Street from the 1830s. J. Simons' 1834 Map of Moyamensing Town-
ship showed some shaded areas near the St. Paul's Church site,
indicating residential buildings. A Neoclassical marble building
was erected by 1834 as '"Moyamensing Hall'" for the township on the
south side of the 900 block of Christian Street, as it slowly be-
gan to be paved for westward travel. Land ownership, when St.
Paul's lot was acquired, was by various tenancies. St. Paul's
founding pastor, Irish-born Father Patrick F. Sheridan obtained
land on the north side of the 900 block of Christian Street in
1843 through the "ground rent" tenancy for the church and rectory.
This may explain why the Pennsylvania Historical Survey included
the nominated Rectory's lot, but not the building. The church's
Gothic style was recorded, and this Rectory's Second Empire design
ignored where it was an unexpected sight amidst the consistent
lines of rowhouses of small and large sizes with no remarkable
details on their facades. This was the visual landscape of the
architecture when the Second Empire came to St. Paul's in the Rec-

tory's design, a rare design indeed.

This part of South Philadelphia was established and well-
developed by the start of the Civil War (1861-1865). The social
and economical status of the community in general (for the Roman
Catholics of mainly Irish ancestry) was stable to finance this
Rectory in the then-fashionable Second Empire to be '"the finest in
the city" in‘1879, (better than the prelate's residence?) and in
a design seen in "the comfortable town houses of prominent Phila-
delphians that lined Rittenhouse Square,' Ssuch as the Lippincott

Ibid., p. 133.
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House (1869-1870) by Addison Hutton, who also placed the same
mansard roof on Francis A. Drexel's country house,"Saint Michel"
(1870) in Torresdale.zeThus, the St. Paul Rectory Second Empire
design could be seen in the residences of the wealthy, and less
affluent, such as south of Rittenhouse Square and along Christian
Street's north side, and between, from about 16th to 24th Streets.
(St. Albans Street is an example.) These were newer neighborhoods:
St. Charles Borromeo Roman Catholic Church at 20th and Christian
Streets;%as constructed for these local residents occupying some
of the new Second Empire rowhouse comstructions by the church's
dedication in 1876. Examples of the Second Empire's mansard roof
on Philadelphia rowhouses typify this neighborhood--it did not
identify with the old Moyamensing Township neighborhood east of
Broad Street that was older and not in need of development. Thus,
St. Paul's Rectory design was an anomaly for the neighborhood in

the 1870s and still is, in present Bella Vista.
[ 32

e —

[,

%9Nominated by undersigned and approved in 2019.

Also nominated by undersigned, but in 2017.
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St. Paul's Rectory's Second Empire design is a strong
contrast to the church's Gothic, but the styles do not clash
because of how their facades are positioned on different streets.
St. Paul's Church faces busy Christian Street that carries more
commercial traffic while Hutchinson Street is residential with
the line of brick row of Trinity houses that open to the Rectory.
The 1879 Rectory is the "youngest" building in this neighborhood
and yet the architectural style still has warmth in the careful
planning of the windows, doorway into the building and charming
mansard roof which is lovingly preserved at the parish. It was
a fitting residence for Vicar General Walsh to host religious
and archdiocesan dignitaries who visited him. Walsh worked and
died at this Rectory, giving attention to the place where he
spent his last days, by choice.

v i o 55
P ""QT h“?f/{r -

The northeast corner of the Rectory has
a view of the north wall and mansard
roof in the short distance from the alley.
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The Second Empire's "short-lived" period of usage throughout
the United States generally phased out "after the panic of 1873,"
wrote art/architectural historian Brown.z8 However, he and his
peers would also admit that "The great resort hotels of the peri-
od" did continue the Second Empire in places such as Cape May,
New Jersey.  Webster highlighted some Second Empires that are
iconic public buildings in Philadelphia such as the early use of
the style at the Union League (1864-1865), then of course, City
Hall (by McArthur from 1871), and then the Victory Building at
10th and Chestnut Streets which arose "after the panic of 1873"
(and not by a Philadelphia architect, but one from New York.)30

The uniqueness of the Second Empire design in one of the
city's older neighborhoods, such as at St. Paul's Rectory, hold

it distinctive and merits historical certification.

Celeste A, Morello, MS, MA
May, 2019

28Browr1, op.cit., p. 251.
29Tbidq.
30Webster, op.cit., p. 114,
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CHAPTER FIVE &1

st. Paul’s Rectory, as designed
by John McArthur, Jr. (. 1878-9)
(Photo by C. A. Morelio)

throughout the years. And priests continued to supplicate the parish-
ioners to sell tickets to these events which at first, were held at “Kelly's
Hall* at 8th and Christian Streets and then later, at the Music Fund Ball
on the 800 block of Locust Street.

Father Sheridan had died in the summer of 1876 and was succeeded by
the Very Reverend Maurice A. Walsh, VG, who was not only St. Paul's pas-
tor, but continued to hold his titles, "Vicar General” of the diocese and his
position on the Council. Walsh, however, was not the only luminary sta-
toned at St. Paul's. For about sixX months, from 1865 to 1866, the newly
ordained Edmond F. Prendergast had his first mission at St. Paul's: he
1ater became a Doctor of Divinity and Archbishop of Philadelphia.

Sometime in 1879, a “new pastoral residence”, (l.e., the rectory}, was
rebuilt at “808 Lebanon Street”.* This residence was first mentioned in
the 1866 Catholic Directory. With the tight budget, the ladies of the parish
furnished the rectory and then had an “open house” by Christmas of
1879.% They wanted to show how any maoney was spent on the priests’
dwelling.

St. Paul's expenses in the 1870s, though, were difficult to meet despite the
size of the parish. Existing account books from this time show a payroll
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OFFICIATL,

The irremovable rectorship of S
Paul’s Church in this city havine be-'-
come vacant by the death of ch 1a-
mented Viear Genersl Very Bev, Muyg-
RICE A, WALsH, the concursus of ecandi-

dates for the vacant position will be held
at the Diocesan Seminar

¥ of Sk Charles
Overbrook, on Thursday, the 24th o,f

J: annary, at 10 o'clock A, Af Permis-

s1I:fn b0 become candidates should he ob-
tained before the 15th of December,

By order of the Most Rev. Archbishop,
Ien, F, HORSTMANN,

Philadelphia, Dee,

i

e

Chancellor L
3, 1883, l

K
In the evening the chureh was
/-t?:e Vesperservice. The Intery
tifally illuminated by gas jets
upper mouldirgs conneeiing th

! the goluns.

Goeb’s Tantum
preached by tho Rev,
ot Nav York. E

The eholr sang Rosewiz’s ¢or
pers, with the f*Magpificat’! Irg
Twelfth Mass; Lambilotte’s <

A

P

His Obsequies and Bishop Cleary’s Able
Funeral Sermen. ;

———————

FWHEH, BOULL 205k v savmie aow an oy e — gy o
be dying, and the le:t rites were again ad-
ministaced to him, NWextday, through Bishop
Cleary, a3 we explained In our last issue, he
received from our Holg Pather Pope Leo
XIF]. the Apostolic Blessing in articuls
mortis. y
During his illness be was visited by many
heartfelt sympathisers, and his brother, Rev.
William Walsh, was constanily with him.
The Archbishop went to see him frequently,
and from the Friday before his death every
day except Sunday. His Grace called again
on Thursday, a few hours after the Viecar-
General had passed away, to offer his eondo-
lence.
Sizeteh of His Life,

Father Walsh was born In the vicinity of
'Dungarvan, County of Waterford, Irejand,
on January 36th, 1832, so that he had not yet
reached the age of fifty-seven years when he
was summoned to his reward. At nvery
early age be was senf to school to the Dun.
gorvan Academy, where he made & vory sue-
ceasfnl course of studies. Having completed
his classical education in that institution,
and having long had the intention of enfering
the priesthood, be was adopted for the pur-
po:é by Bishop Kenrick, of Philadelphia,
iust before that Prelate wns fransferred to
the Archiepisecopal See of Baltimore, andin
Ia 351, came to this city, in which he was
to spend by far the %renter part of the re-
mainder of his earthly life. e was accom-
panied by twwo other ecclesizstical students
from Waterford, both of whom were in due
time ordained priests, but have long since
passed to their eternalreward. OnJune2dhe
entered the Seminary of St. Charles Borro.
meo, at Bighteenth and Race sireets, where
he completed his philosophical studies and
_followed with marked success the prescribed
course of theclogy, laying broad and deep
the foundations of the sacred sciences, After
spending four years in the Seminary he was

R e

'ALEADER STRICKEN

Death of Very Rev. Father

Walsh, V. G. |

l

For moro than ons reason St Miehzel's is
one of the historic churehes of Philadelphia.
Eleven years after its foundation it was
reised from the ashes under which fanatical
incendiaries-had buried it on the mewmorabls
gizth of May, 1844 ; butit arose stiil skackled
with bhe red-tape feftersef the pernicions
trustee system, On this acecunt it required
aman of no ordinary abilivy to conduct s
affairs with safety. This was why Pather
Walsh wasselected to sucesed Father Thomas
Kieran, who, after spending three years

| Viear-General of the Uiogese when he wWas
yat only thirty-six years of age. So well
fitted for this respoumsible position did he
prove himself that his duties seemed to rost
buf lightly on his sboulders, even when the
death of the Yery Reverend Father Carter
% left him to exercise them alone.
| Tader his mild, paternal care S¢, Michael's
‘parish was soen raised almost to the very
highest point of prosperity; nor need there
be any fear that it +will soon forfeit this
noble hornor. Bufif is the happy fate of the
priest of God that when he has accomplished
his mission in one feld, another is opened to
him. Nine years ago St. Paul’s Church lost
by death its founder and first Pastor, Rev.
P. F. Sheridan, who mi ell be styled o
'Wﬁghars'ﬁ%'ﬂfa Chureh in this d'ib’é'edégé?
HE bad aceéomplished a magniBcent wWork,
and it was but mesf that this fact should be
acknowledged by the continuance of that
: work being entrusied info the most compe-
‘tent hands., This was what. the dost Heve-
rend hbisho) d did when, after pro-*
nouncing FHather Sheridan’s funeral oration
on the 12th of July, 1879, he announced bis,
suecessor to be the Very Rev, M. A, Walsh,*

3 oab greafer compliment conld His
Grace confer on the people of Si. Panl’s than
give them his Viear-General for a Pastor, and
what betterreturn counld he make to them for
the heavy loss they had sustained? The im-
provements effected within less than a year
after this appointment soon showed the wis-
dom of his choice. The most apparent of
these Efthem%ggg#é%, the finest
in the cify, which has taken the piace of the
old one, erected when the pazish was in its
infancy. f

On assuming charge of the parish Father
Walsh took up his temperary residence ab

;; 704 Christian street, where he remained until
{be new house in Lebanon street, erected on
the site of the old ome, was complated. By

__ordained by Bishop Ney On Juiy 2d, [ this time, slso, the work was paid for, 50
1555, he ToCAIVEQ ot %F%BTS, Sobdeacon-  that nothing was added to the parish debt

ship on the 3th, Deaconship on_the 6th, and

on this aceount, The amount of indebted-

was elevated to the sublime dignity of tha *pesg Father Walsh found upon the church

priesthood on tho Bth day of the same .
month, when he was yet bub a little over

property was over 519,000, All this, ex-

ceept a small irredeemable ground rent on

twenty-three years of age. He was ordained | ghe chureh itself, he paid of long sinee
in 8t Michaef's Charel, in this eify, Where | and mads, besides, eonsiderable impIove.
‘Hié Was afterwatas to spend so many yeals 0f | ments in the conveni and parcehial school

his usefal ministry a8 a zealous and indefati-
gable pastor.

His first mission was at 5t Patrick's
Church, Pottsvills, as assistant to the Rev,
Father O'Keefe, long since deceased. He
was only there five months when ke was
thought worthy to be entrusted with the im-
portant charge of the faithful of Tamagua
and surrounding towns, a charge which he
mwdartant an tha 16th of Januare. 1856, He

property.
Hlis Siiver Jubllee.

The good will which was from the begin-
ning established beatween the Pastor and his
peopie was shown in a most pleasing and
unmistakable manner just one year afier
Pather Walsh assumed charge of St. Pauls,
The occasion was the oceurrence of the
gilver jubilee or twenty-fifth anniversary of

Lin anAiwvadinae fPhic owant wras salahratad



The Diocess has sustained the great loss
foreshadowed in our last issue, in which we
announced that Very Rev. Viear-General
‘VWalsh, at the time of our going to press early
on Truesday morning, bad passed beyond all
human hope of recovery. For two days more
he ciung tenaciously to life, _smd passed to bis
eternal reward at ten minates befors three
o'cloek on Thursday morning, surrounded by
relatives and members of his heunsehold.
Those present were his brother, Rev. William
Walsh, Rector of Si. Bridget’s, Falls of
Sehuylkill ; bis niece, Miss Walsh ; his assist-
ant priests, Revs. R. F. Hanagan and Walter
P. Gough, (the third assistant, Rev. P, F.
wleNulty, being absent only by reason of his
own illness) ; and the Sister of St. Francis
who bad beer his nurse during the past few
weeks., He retained conseiousness until the
jast momen$, and his end was peaceful asg
natural sieep.

Father Walsh had been [l ive weeks with .

Brighv's disease of the kidueys, and had been
three weeks confined to his bed, though ha
was able to get up and say Mass on Surday
morning, November 465, This was the last
time he offered up the Holy Sacrifice. On
Wednesday, the 14th, bis condition first
caused alarm, and that evening he received
the last saeraments, Ther he rallied some-
what until the following Sunday evening,
when, abous nine o’clock he was thought to
be dying, and the last rites were again ad-
mainisterad to hiz. Next day, through Bishop
Cleary, &5 we explained in our last issue, he
raceived from our Holy Father Pope Ieo
XIII. the Apostolic Blessing in ariicule
moriis. .

During his illness be was visited by many
heartfelt sympathisers, and his brother, Rev.
Wiiliam Walsk, was constantly with him.
The Archbishop went to see him frequently,
and from the Friday before his death every
day except Sunday. His Grace called again
on Thursday, 2 few bours afier the Viear-
General had passed away, to ofer his condo-
lence.

Sicetch of His Lije.

Father Walsh was born in fhe vicinity of
Dungarvan, County of Waterford, Ireland
on January 56th, 1832, so that ha had not yet
reached the age of fitfy-seven years when he
was summoened to his reward, Af a very
early age he waa sent to school to the Dua-
garvan Academy, where he made a very sue-
cessiul course of studies. Having complated
fiis eclassical education in thab institution,
and having long had the intention of entering
the priesthood, he was adopted for the pur-
posc by Dishop Eenrick, of Thiladelphia,
{ust pefore that Prelate was transferrad to
The Archiopiscopal Ses of Baltimore, and in
hiay, 1851, eame to this ity in which he was
T spend by far the g;reater part of the re-
aainder of his earthly life. He was accom-
panied by two other ecclesiastical students
from Waterford, both of whom were in due
timme ordained priests, bat have long since
passed to theireternalreward. OnJone2dhe
entered the Seminary of St. Charles Borro-
meo, at Bighteenth ané Race sireets, where
he compleied his philosophiea! studies ana
Tollgwed with marked success the preseribed
course of theology, laying bread and deep
the foundations of the sacred sciences, After

apending four yoars in the Seminary he was
ollg-daiued by Bishop Neumann. On July 24,

1835, he received Minor Orders, Subdeacon-
siip on the 5th, Deaconship on the 8th, and
was elevated to the sublime dignity of the
priesthood on the Bth day of the same
fmonth, when he was yebt bub a little over
twengy-three years of age. Hewas ordained
in 3t Miehael’s Chureh, in this city, where
e was afterwards to spend so many years of
his nseful ministry as a zealous and indefati-
gable pastor.

His first mission was ab 5t Patrick’s
“eend Pattaville. as assistant fo the Rev.

Kieran, who, after spending thzee years
there, had been placed in charge of St.
Ann’s, Port Richzond, in suceassion to the
founder of that magnificent temple, the
%;eatly revered Father McLoughlin. ™ Father

alah at onee grappled with the difficulties
which he knew he had to coutend againgt,
The church was then by no meansa model
place of worship, Improvemenis were im.
mediately begun. Havieg been onlarged,
it was =zlso completely renovated. A new
marble altar was procured, stained glass
windows were put in, and the two fowers
erected, in onme of which was placed a
aweetly toned bell weighing three thousand
pounds, and in the other a fne clock. Thess
improvements mads the church one of the
handsomest in the city,

As a suilable crowning of the Pastor’s
labors, the sacred edifice was solemnly con-

secrated by the Right Rev. Bisbop Wood on
Sunday, the 30th day of September, 1866.-
Nor did the improvements in St Michael’s
parish end here. The pastoral residence was
thoroughly repaired, an academy for the use
of the Sisters of St. Joseph, now the resi-
dence of the Christian Brothers, which is
situated on Second street aimpst opposite
the ehurch, was purchaged, and the magni-
ficent convent connected with the parochial
,Behools ereofed at a cost of nearly thirty
: thousand dollaxs.

For bis suceessful labors in the canse of
religion, Father YWalsh was soon rewarded by
being appointed on October 26, 1868, junior
| Viear-General of the Diocese when he wae
 yot only thirty-siz years of agéd, So well
fitted for thizs responsible position did he
prove himself that his duties seemed to rest
buf lightly on his shoulders, even when the
death of the Very Reverend Father Carter
‘t left him to exerciss them alone.

{ for during the following year and over that

} him to the point of death, and from which he

Under his mild, paternal care St. dichael's
parish was soen raised almost to the very |
highest point of prosperity; nor nesd there
be any fear that it will scon forfeit this|
noble honor. Buf it is the happy fate of the '
priest of God that when he has accomplished
his mission in one fisld, another is opened to -
him, Nine years ago St. Pau¥’s Church lost
by death itz founder and first Pastor, Rev.
P, I, Sheridan, who migﬂlt well be styled one
of the fathers of the Church in this diocese. .
He had accompiished a magnificent work,
angd it was but meet that thiz fact should be
| acknowtedged by the continuance of that
! work being entrusted into the most compe-
tent hands. ‘This was what. the Most Reve- |
rend Archbishop Wood did when, after pro-
nouncing Father Sheridan’s funeral oration -
on the 12th of July, 1879, he announced his
suceersor {0 be the YVery Rev. Ll A. Walsh,
V¥.G. What greater complimeut could His .
Grace confer on the people of 3t. Paul’s than |
give them his Vicar-General for a Pastor, and .
what better return could he make to them for ;
the heavy loss they had sustained? Theim-'
provements effected within less than 8 vear .
g‘ffer tm’si1 appﬁintmen{‘ goon shewed the wis- i

om of his choice. 8_most apparent of |
these is the new pastofal residerice, thie fingat |
id the city, WEICE hed takeh the piace of thae .
ﬁ_ Iq-onE, erected when the parish was in its !
infaney. 1

On assuming chargs of the parish Father !
Walsh took up his tempurary residence ab

the site of the old one, was complated. By
this time, also, the work was paid for, sq
that nething was added $o the parish debt
on this aceonnt. The amount o1 indebted-
ness Father Walsh found upon the church
property was over $19,000. All this, ex-
cept » small irredeemable greundrent on
wthe church ifself, he paid off iong since,
and made, besides, considerable improve-
fments in the convent and paroghial sehool
property.
Hig Sllver Jubllee:

The good will which was from the begin-

GLUDLLIIULL AL WIEY  BOslriil  OLLULASLLS wy T
pupils of the Sistergof the Immacuﬁute Heart
of Mary.

His ®Fwo Torms ns Administrator.

But still higher henor and responsibility |:
was yeb awaiting Father Walsh, On June |
20, 1883, the Diocese lost its fitst Arch [
bishop, who on the day preceding tHat of
his death appointed his Viear-General |t
1o administer the affairs of the Digcese nniil
hiS sucecessor would be installed. The event
showed that the preat confidence thus re-
posed on Father Walsh was not misplaced ;

he exercised this authority be gave the utmost |
satisfaction to all concerned, and surrendered |
his charge to Archbishop Byan in at least as
good condition as he bhad received it. He was
given a signal honor in the early part of ks
administratorship, when, on August 6th, 1383,
the facuity of Mu. 5. Mary's College, Fm- I
mittsburg, Md., conferred on him the degree !
of I , & celegation from the faculty ;
waititig upon him at his house for that pur- |
pose, Towards the end of the same period
during which ke was Administrator he was :;
attacked by his first serious illness—in May,

1884, he was siricken down with inflamma--
tory rheumatism, which at one time brought

did not taliy recover until the following No-,
vember. From that fime he sesmed tu enjoy -
very good health until attacked by his lagt 1lf- -
pess. 1t was during his former period of ill-
nealth that his long ferm of Administrator-
ship ceased ; and in recognition of the fidelity
with whick be nad performed its duties,

Archbishop Ryap, on the very day of his
installation, August 20th, 1884, reappointed

him Vicar-ireneral, whict ofiies he held until
his denth., Once more he was fora brief pericd

made Administrator of the Archdiocese,

namely, last winter, during Avchbishop

Ryuan’s absence on his first offipial visit to
Rome; and then again he showed his entirs
fitness to discharge in the most acceptable
manner all the duiles of the high office. We
may, therefore, well hope that, when called
fo give an account of his steawrdship, he has
received the rewasrd of the good and faithfal

servant. ;

Tributos to Hia'nlemory. ,
At each Mass in 3t. Paul’s last Sunday the |
Cetebrant spoke of the great bereavement |
suffered by the parish, and the congregation !
were deepiy affected by the touching words ;
of each speaker. They all must have ob- .
served the unaffected kindness of their late |
Pastor, who was gentieness personified ; bug
what they weare not so well acquainted with ;
was hia great charity, both of tongue and of !
worldiy goods. In the latter respect his °
beneficence was limited only by the means ;
at his disposal—for the purpose of doing
good he was never sparing of the money ,
that came info his hands which he could cail !

704 Chiisticn strest, where he remained until |
the new house in Lebanon street, erected on V'

ning estabiished bebtwoeen the Pustor and his
- Mmoo

his own; ofherwise he was most exacting :
and just in all the business transactions in |
which he was concerned. Always anxious !
for the advancement of learning and of piety
among his people, he most earnestly pro-
moted the cause of education by raising his
parochial schools to the highest atandard,
and encouraged to the utmost of his ability
21l the religious socisties approved by the
Church. Thus linking devotion and knowl-
edge hand in hand, ke laid the Ioundatious
of solid virtue among his people,who shounid
therefors remember him in all their prayers
and pious practices.
Actlon by the Parish Socletlea.

That the greater honor might be paid °
his memory, it was properly decided to hold
the funeral at the Cathedral, and Tuesday
of this week was the day selected for it. In
his own parish everything has been done by
his spirifual children that respeet, devotion
and duty require. All the parish societies
have held meetings and adopted suitable
resoluiiong calling for appropriate action,
not only in regard o attending &he funeral,
but aiso as to his aternal welfare, 'The B.
V. M. Sodality wiil bave a Solemn Mass of-

- M, dne of thia waplz.

L




France in the Seventeenth Century

ARCHITECTURE

Henry IV’s conversion to Catholicism in 1593,
and the consequent acceptance of his authority
throughout France, may be considered the first
major step in the wransformation of that country
into a modern nation-state. The beginning made
by Henry 1V and his minister Sully toward nation-
al unification and centralization of power was con-
tinued (after the weak and nearly catastrophic

rule of Maria de’ Medici [1610-1624)) by Louis

XIIT and Richelieu, and later by Mazarin. When
Louis XIV, assisted by Colbert, took over the
reins of government in 1661, the authority of the
crown was unchallenged and France was the dom-
inant power in Europe.

The arts in France kept pace with the progres-
sive consolidationand strengtheningofthe nation.
In general, in the first quarter of the seventeenth
century there was a continuation of the artistic
patterns of the previous century; during the next
fifteen years or so French artists imported and ab-
sorbed the lessons of modern Italian art; in the
period from about 1640 to about 1660, in the art
of Frangois Mansart and Nicolas Poussin, the
most original and undoubtedly the finest French
achievements of the century were made. After

-

1660 there was a final consolidation and expan-
sion of earlier accomplishments under the aegis of
official academies of art.

The character of French architecture at the be-
ginning of the seventeenth century was largely
determined by Henry 1V, who was especially con-
cerned to make practical and aesthetic improve-
ments in the city of Paris. During his reign streets
were widened and paved, new quarters were built
and old ones renovated. Following the king’s di-
rections, architects like Claude Chastillon and
Louis Métezeau executed schemes many of which,
characteristically, had been envisaged in the six-
teenth century. One of these, the Place des Vosges
(hg. 126), formerly known as the Place Royale,
goes back to an idea of Catherine de’ Medici’s in
the 1560s. Under Henry IV, beginning in 1603,
the square was planned, and plots were sold to
buyers who agreed to build according to the pre-
established architectural design. For himself the
king had the central, higher pavilions built on
either side of the square. The houses are of brick
and stucco, and the continuous line of arcades,
windows, dormers, and roofs enclosing the Place
des Vosges creates a restrained, graceful pattern

France in the Seventeenth Century [/ 127




that stll suggests residential quiet and dignity.

Architectural achievements at the beginning of
the century consisted less in new ideas or inven-
tions than in the assurance and competence with
which projects were realized. The most notable
architect of this period was Salomon de Brosse
(1571-1626), whose best-known works today are
the Palais de Justice at Rennes and the Luxem-
bourg Palace in Paris. The latter, begun in 1615
for Marija de’ Medici, is not significantly new in
plan (fig. 127). The scheme, with its main block
flanked by two wings, and the court thus formed

126, Place des Vosges

Begun 1603, Paris

enclosed by a screen in front, goes back to six-
teenth-century chiteau plans. The specific source
here seems to be the chiteau of Verneuil of about
1565, designed by Jacques du Cerceau, who was,
in fact, De Brosse’s maternal grandfather. The
architect’s personality asserts itself most forci-
bly in his feeling for mass and weighty articula-
tion. The domed entrance pavilion of the Luxem-
bourg (fig. 128), for instance, is given bulk and
density by the projecting columns, the broken
line of the entablatures, and the aggressive rusti-
cation of the entire surface.!

[27. 128. SALOMON DE BROSSE.
Plan and Entrance Pavition,
Luxembourg Palace.
Begun 1615, Paris

(formerly Place Royale),

{17th-century engraving)



129, SALOMON DE BROSSE.
Exterior, Palais de Justice.
Begun 1618. Rennes

The Luxembourg has an air of ponderousness;
in his later works at Rennes (fig. 129) and at the
chiteau of Blérancourt, which seem especially im-
portant for Fran¢ois Mansart, De Brosse shows
the same seriousness, but he tends to be more eco-
nomical in his means and more insistently correct
in his use of the classical vocabulary, while at the
same time highly inventive. In general, his style
seems to have been inspired largely by works of
the “classical” phase of sixteenth-century architec-
ture in France (c. 1540-c. 1565). In 1619, in fact,
De Brosse was responsible for an edition of Jean
Bullant's treatise, Regle générale d'architecture
(1565).

The influence of contemporary ltalian archi-
tecture appears in France most strikingly in the
work of Jacques Lemercier (c. 1585~1654), who
returned to Paris by 1615 after about seven years
in Italy. He became the favorite architect of Car-
dinal Richelieu, for whom he designed the Palais
Royal, the town of Richeliev, and other works.
One of the buildings commissioned by Richelieu
is the Church of the Sorbonne, begun in 1635. In
plan and elevation the church is almost entirely
Roman in design; it has been noticed, in fact, that
in many respects the church is a direct imitation
of San Carlo ai Catinari in Rome (1612-20).2 The

130. JACQUES LEMERCIER.
West Fagade, Church of the Sorbonne,
Begun 1635, Paris

church has two facades, one on the street and one
in the court of the Sorbonne. To make it possible
to see the dome in conjunction with the street, or
west, facade (fig. 130), Richelieu had the Place de
la Sorbonne cleared of buildings. This facade,
with its superimposed Corinthian and Composite
orders, its rhythm of alternating bays marked by
columns and pilasters, and its volutes uniting the
high upper story and broad lower story, evidently
belongs to the tradition of Roman design rep-




resented by Giacomo della Porta’s I1 Gest facade
(fig. 15).

It is significant that Lemercier’s church was be-
gun just three years before Borromini began San
Carloalle Quattro Fontane in Rome (fig. 39). The
distinctive character of French seventeenth-cen-
tury architecture is to a large extent explained by
the fact that in the years when the baroque style
was being formed in Italy, French artists were tak-
ing the conservative, “academic” tradition in [tal-
ian architecture as a point of departure for the
development of their national style.

Lemercier was the kind of competent architect
who offers his patrons dependability and accom-
modation rather than genius. Very different was
Frangois Mansart (1598-1666), who would seem
to have carried inventive fertility to extravagance,
andartisticintegrity to obstinacy. In 1645 Mansart
was commissioned by Anne of Austria to under-
take a huge project for the Convent of the Val-de-
Grice in Paris. The plan (fig. 131) involved the
building of a church and forecourt, additions to
the convent, and the construction of a palace for
the queen. Mansart had agreed to complete the
church within a year and a half, but work soon
fell behind schedule and expenses rose above
estimates as the architect apparentlychanged and
reworked his plans with grand indifference to the
will of his patron. In 1646 he was replaced by
Lemercier; all that is left of Mansart’s independ-
ent work is the ground plan of thé church (al-
though partly altered), the elevation up to the
first cornice, and the record of his ideas that sur-

- vives in the commemorative medal and in pre-

paratory drawings.3

Mansart seems to have been trained under De
Brosse, and, although he never went to Italy, it is
evident that his knowledge of Italian architecture,
gained mostly through books, was exhaustive.
The general plan for the Church of the Val-de-
Grice, with its aisleless, barrel-vaulted nave and
side chapels, is dependent on Vignola’s plan of 11
Gest (fig. 14), a scheme that had already been
introduced to France, primarily by the Jesuit ar-
chitect Etienne Martellange (1565-1641). Here,
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131. FrRaNGOIS MANSART. Plan, Church of the Val-de-Griice,
1645-62. PPuris

however, the nave culminates in an expanded,
undulating space created by the play of semicir-
cular choir and transept apses around the domed
crossing. This idea derives from Palladio’s design
of the Redentore in Venice.

Mansart’s ability to find new forms and combi-
nations,and to use ideas deriving from Italian and
also French sixteenth-century traditions, appears
in one of his earliest buildings, the Church of Ste.
Marie de la Visitation in Paris, begun in 1632,
The church is planned as a central domed space
with radiating chapels (fig. 132). Its sources are to
be found in Michelangelo’s plan for San Giovanni
dei Fiorentini, and in chapel designs by Philibert
de I'Orme and Jacques du Cerceau.* However,
the Church of the Visitation has an unmistakable
seventeenth-century character. Unlike his mod-
els, Mansart avoided an absolute regularity of
planand created instead a pattern ofrelated spaces
that vary in size and shape.® Furthermore, by
sinking the central floor below the level of the
chapels, a dramatic heightening of the interior
effect is produced. Nevertheless, for all its moder-
nity in seventeenth-century terms, there is, in the
Church of the Visitation, a sense of harmony and
fine balance that differs greatly from the emotion-
alism and activity of such Roman baroque de-
signs as Borromini’s San Carlo (fig. 37). Mansart
insists on the “classical” circle rather than the
“baroque” oval for his main form; he establishes
a regular rhythm of small and large bays; and he
uses relatively severe and classically correct deco-
rative detail.




134. FRANGOIS MANSART.
Exterior of the Orleans W
Chiiteau of Blois.

Begun 1635

i ng

Beginning in 1635 Mansart worked for three
years at Blois for Gaston d'Orléans, Louis X1II's
brother. Gaston’s original plan was to demolish
the sixteenth-century buildings at Blois and to
135, FRANGOIS MANSART. construct a hew, huge palace. Apparently the pro-
Section, Grand Staircase, Chéteau of Blois ject proved too expensive, As it is, the severely
monumental block that was actually executed is
one of the finest works of the century (fig. 134).
Of particular interest is the grand staircase (fig.
135). The stairs themselves carry only to the first
floor; on the second floor is a continuous gallery,
and above that a dome and lantern. Mansart de-
vised the idea of opening the first-floor ceiling toa
view of the gallery and to the dome above, thus
creating an unexpected sensation of spaciousness
and luminosity. This device of the cut-off ceiling
or dome with a view into the space beyond was
anticipated in the small domes of the Church of
the Visitation, and projected for the main dome of
the Val-de-Grace. Its final realization was in Jules
Hardouin-Mansart's Church of the Invalides (fig.
148).
Between 1642 and 1646 Frangois Mansart built
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11
Architecture:

Styles

The architecture of the nineteenth century as a whole, and
of the second half specifically, has commonly been de-
scribed as an epic struggle between the forces of reaction
expressed in eclecticism and those of progress embodied
in functionalism. However, it was an exuberantly pro-
ductive era, fascinating in its failures as well as in its
successes. What was once seen as a single undeviating Iine
of development from Darby’s iron bridge over the Severn
to the International Style now seems too simplistic. Re-
cent historians have rediscovered aspects of eclecticism
which had either an important influence on the main-
stream or aesthetic validity in their own right. The separa-
tion between architect and engineer in the latter half of
the ceniury was real, but architects were not blind to
advances in technology. Many had engineering training,
some even made important contributions to building
technology, and every large architectural firm had its
engineer. However, the gap between the purely utilitarian
construction of bridges, railroads, canals, dams, or fac-
tories and that of traditional structures such as public
buildings and dwellings had become irreconcilable. Ar-
chitecture and engineering had become distinct and
specialized professions.

It was in the gray area between engineering and archi-
tecture that aesthetic confusion occurred. The problem
showed itself clearly in the railroad station, where the
train shed was entrusted to the engineer and the station
building itself to the architect. Commercial architecture
in general teetered between utility and public presence. To
be profitable the commercial building had to be service-
able and economical, but it often had to appeal to aes-
thetic taste as well. Ornateness was directly related to the
status consciousness of the client.

Building activity fell off with the financial depression
of 1857, and the decline naturally continued through the
Civil War, but the postwar boom fostered public and
private building on an unprecedented scale. The period is
characterized not only by a new level of extravagance but
also by an uninhibited and often misguided mingling of
elements from various historical sources. The result was

he Battle of

at times a provincial pastiche, labeled aptly enough the
“General Grant Style,” since its life span coincided with
the General's term as President (1869-77).

From the end of the Civil War to the Philadelphia
Centennial Exhibition in 1876, American taste accepted
with equanimity two distinet revival styles, the Victorian
Gothic and the French Second Empire. On the face of It,

e ———— T, .
no two modes could be more disparate: the one medieval,

towered, pointed-arched, asymmetrical, and polychromed;
the other Classical-oriented, mansard-roofed, round-
arched, symmetrical, ordered, and, at least in its origins,
essentially monochromatic. Yet, somehow the two were
converted to a common aggressively plastic picturesque-
ness expressive of the brash adventurism of the period

itsell. Churches, schools, libraries, and museums were

normally Gothic, while governmental and commercial

buildings, or anything intended to appear palatial or

luxurious, were more frequently Second Empire.
{continued on page 250)

DECORATIVE ARTS

The Centennial Exhibition in Philadelphia in 1876 intro-
duced several conflicting trends in decoration, from the
revival of our colonial heritage to exotic Eastern modes.
Various decorators and designers began then to mingle
Moorish, East Indian, and Japanese elements, not always
distinguishing among the styles they were incorporating.
Interest in the Near East was evident in the use of cushions
and divans, inlaid tables, brass objects of all kinds, and
decorative screens. Many clients had special corners treated
in exotic manners, and some even had entire Moorish
rooms. The finest such room (colorplate 34) was designed
for Arabella Worsham and later owned by John D. Rocke-
Sfeller. Here divans, cushions, and the rich Oriental rug are
almost subordinated to the lavish overall decorative scheme.
The woodwork is covered with both deep carving and poly-
chromed ornament taken from Moorish models. The furni-
ture is attributed to George Schastey, who was known for



such work and had been one of the “hits” of the Centennial
Exhibition. The cabinets and other pieces are carved even
more elaborately than the woodwork, and inlay is incor-
porated throughout. Custom work of such quality was
obviously not available to all, but much of the manufactured
Jfurniture was designed to satisfy a similar taste.

{eontinued from page 249)

THE SECOND EMPIRE

The American version of the Second Empire, perhaps
because it derived from engraved illustrations, remained
somewhat dry, hard, and almost austere, its basic exu-
berance expressed in an elaboration of elements rather
than lushness of surface. While the vogue in the sixties
was reinforced by the popularity of Napoleon Il and the
Empress Eugénie, the architectural influence came not
directly from France but through England. However,

MALSRALIEEET SETT

prefigurations of the mode had appeared in the United
States before the war. The most characteristic feature, the
mansard roof, named after the seventeenth-century
French architect Jules Hardouin-Mansart, occurs as early
as the fifties in isolated examples which seer almost &
Togical outgrowth of the Italian Villa style rather than a
new importation. )

James Renwick, whose early work had been in medieval
revival modes, tried his hand at the Second Empire style
in several buildings indicative of an awareness of the new
manner. In 1859 he designed a Second Empire building
to house the Corcoran Gallery, now the Renwick Gallery
(plate 278), Washington, D.C. It was executed in red brick
with brownstone trim, and although it was obviously a
monumental effort, the result was still a somewhat mud-
dled and provincial reflection of Napoleon ITT’s extension
of the Louvre in Paris.

Most Federal building during the General Grant era
was in the Second Empire manner. The old State, War,

278 James Renwick. The Renwick Gallery (formerly

Corcoran Gallery), Washington, D.C. 1859
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279 Ware & Van Brunt, Memorial Hall, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass. 1870-78

and Navy Department Building (1871-88), now the Ex-
ecutive Office Building, in Washington, D.C., remains
one of the prime examples of the style. It has served for
so long as a model of bad taste that modern eyes can
. Scarcely see it in its own terms, as a coherent, insistently ,
{ plastic mass with a distinet personality. The Philadelphia {
City Hall (1871-81), designed by John McArthur, Jr.,
has been equally denigrated, perhaps because of the un-
gainly, out-of-scale tower capped by a gilded statue of
William Penn, which was added more than a decade after
the building was finished. .
The Second Empire style was short-lived. Certainly
not many buildings in the style postdate the panic of 1873,
Although it was never a major manner in American
architecture, two of the earliest skyscrapers in New York
City, George Post’s Western Union Building (1873-75)
and Richard M. Hunt’s Tribune Building (1873-73), both
¢ sported mansard roofs.
" Feor urban houses the style became common in the late
1850s and Temained popular through the mid-1870s, but
it had perhaps its most successful and telling effect in
suburban domestic architecture, where its sculptural
@Iities pleased the picturesque taste of the times. It

_/"

was freely substituted for, and even combined with, the
earlier pointed Gothic or flat Italian Villa roofs.

The great resort hotels of the period were among the
most original confections of Second Empire style, Splen-
did hostelries of gargantuan Proportions were built in the
Catskills, Saratoga, Newport, and Atlantic City. Nothing
else quite exemplified the social pretensions and essential
instability of the General Grant era as did those giant
tinderbox fantasies. Economics, time, and fire doomed
the delightful dinosaurs to extinction. Only a few crum-
bling relics can still be seen in such places as Cape May,
N.J., and Block Island, R.1.

VICTORIAN GOTHIC

The Gothic Revival continued into the postwar era, al-
though its character was radically altered. The newer,
so-called “Victorian Gothic” was the achievement of a
new generation influenced by John Ruskin’s Seven Lamps
of Architecture, lauding the English Gothic, and his
Stones of Venice, in which he shifted allegiance to the
Italians. The style, like the Second Empire, was short-
lived; absorbed eventually by the Romanesque, it pro-
duced few notable monuments.
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Philadelphia
Preserve

Catalog of
the Historic American
Buildings Survey

Richard J. Webster

With an Introduction by
Charles E. Peterson

Temple University Press

Philadelphia \ w &\ \

PENN'S CITY: CENTER SQUARE 13

measures for the suppression of the Rebellion.” In this effort they
raised a half-million dollars and 10,000 volunteers for the Civil War's
battlefields. Originally a third of its members were Democrats, but in
1898 it became explicitly a Republican club, allowing the Union
League to call itself the oldest Republican Party club in continuous
existence in the United States.*! John Fraser designed the housein_

1864 and it was completed the next year as one of the city’s early
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brick and brownstone eminence inspired the late Philadelphia wit Al-
fred Bendiner to suggest that club members hang black crepe to cheer
it up.#? A large granite and steel-frame annex was built at the rear
between 1908 and 1911 from the designs of Horace Trumbauer, *? but
the Broad Street front has changed little. The ornamental iron roof

fringe and the tower’s mansard were removed during the 1920's, but

everything else is intact, including one of the handsomest sweeping
stairs to be found anywhere.

Equally prominent for its architecture and history is the

ermmam_vzm Masonic Temple at Broad and Filbert streets. James H.

Windrim won the architectural competition in 1868, but it was five
years before the construction ended, primarily because all the stone
‘had to be cut, squared, and marked at the quarries according to Ma-
sonic tradition. The design is a fine academic rendering of the
Norman style and the asymmetrical towers and splendidly carved en:

trance porch are especially noteworthy. Yet its reputation as one of

the world’s greatest Masonic temples rests more on its rich interior,

' which took more than fifteen years to complete. Great rooms are

decorated in different historical styles intended as symbolic instruc-
tion in the principles of Freemasonry.*3

Other notable clubs and fraternal headquarters also stood along
Broad Street, such as the Odd Fellows Hall at Race Street, the Manu-
facturers Club at Walnut Street, and the Philadelphia Art Club at
Chancellor Street. Since it was built as a high-rise office building, the
Manufacturers Club building has a bright future, but the others are
gone. The last to fall was the Art Club. This notable Italian design wa
the first major work of Frank Miles Day, who won the architectural
competition in 1887 shortly after returning from Europe.*¢ The club
fell victim to the Great Depression, and many present-day Phila-
delphians knew the building only as the Keystone Automobile Club,
which had its headquarters there between 1946 and 1968.47 After tha
it endured long periods of vacancy broken by occasional occupancies
often as political campaign headquarters. Finally in late 1975 came th




	808 S Hutchinson St overview OK
	808-S-Hutchinson-St-nomination
	808 S Hutchinson St Boundary Description
	Photos supplemental
	808 S Hutchinson St nomination




